

Students Handbook

Department of Law Faculty of Arts University of Jaffna

Academic Year 2019/2020



Department of Law Faculty of Arts University of Jaffna

Students Handbook Academic Year 2019/2020

Contact:

- Office : +94212229601
- E-mail : <u>law@univ.jfn.ac.lk</u>

Website : <u>www.arts.jfn.ac.lk/law</u>

Address : Department of Law, University of Jaffna, Jaffna, Sri Lanka.

The following information is accurate as of March 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	VISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF LAW	3
2.	MISSION STATEMENT OF THE DEPARTMENT OF LAW	3
3.	The Graduate Profile, Bachelor of Laws	4
4.	LEARNING OBJECTIVES	5
5.	Introduction	6
6.	DEPARTMENT OF LAW	7
7.	ACADEMIC STAFF OF THE DEPARTMENT	11
8.	NON- ACADEMIC STAFF	16
9.	Former Heads of the Department of Law	17
10.	. ZERO TOLERANCE TO RAGGING AND OTHER FORMS OF VIOLENCE	18
11.	. Awards	19
12.	LIBRARY	19
13.	. The Student Computer Unit	19
14.	. THE IMPORTANCE OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE	19
15.	. Sports-Science Unit	20
16.	. STUDENT WELFARE AND DISCIPLINE	20
17.	. COUNSELLING AND CAREER GUIDANCE	20
18.	. Students' Wellbeing	20
19.	. Gender Equity and Equality	21
20.	. The Alumni Committee	21
21.	. LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION	21
22.	. Mooting and Debating	22
23.	. Our Approach to the Study of Law	23
24.	. WHOM TO CONTACT?	23
25.	. Key Points from the By-Laws	29
26.	. By Laws	30
27.	. REGULATIONS	39



VISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF LAW

To be a leading legal centre of excellence in teaching, learning, research and scholarship.

MISSION STATEMENT OF THE DEPARTMENT OF LAW

To be a leading legal centre of academic excellence in producing professionally competent and socially responsible lawyers by providing quality teaching and learning and by undertaking research that meets the emerging needs of local, national and international communities with special emphasis on the social, economic, political and cultural needs of the region.

THE GRADUATE PROFILE, BACHELOR OF LAWS UNIVERSITY OF JAFFNA

The Department of Law will produce graduates who:

- are competent in the field of law, aware of comparative perspectives and understand the interaction between law and other academic disciplines.
- possess the core legal skills necessary to practice law in Sri Lanka either byway of litigation and/or non-litigation such as working in the private sector,non-governmental sector *et al.*)
- apply legal skills towards problem-solving, policymaking and other relatedrelevant interventions at the local, national or global levels.
- develop a critical and empathetic perspective of the law in terms of relationship with plural notions of justice, impact on societies and are committed to using their skills to help the marginalised in society
- are passionate about justice, empathetic, aware of the impact of the law on society, sensitive to the needs of different communities in Sri Lanka and committed to using their skills to help the marginalised in society

LEARNING OBJECTIVES

 $Having \ completed \ the \ LLB, \ graduates \ will \ possess \ the \ following \ capabilities:$

1. Demonstrate knowledge in law

2. Identify the applicable law in a given situation

Accurately identify the applicable statutory, case law and legal principles so as to apply the law on a given issue correctly.

3. Develop skills to articulate legal arguments effectively

Advance arguments for legal interpretation based on sound legal research and legal writing skills.

4. Adopt a holistic approach to resolving legal problems

Analyse a legal problem and, having taken into account its legal, historical, social, political and economic context, propose a meaningful solution to thesaid problem.

5. Demonstrate the ability to engage in life-long learning for professional and personal development

Advance and update their knowledge and skills in order to progress in a professional and personal capacity.

6. Adapt to a plural environment

Understand the dynamics of a multicultural, multilingual, multi-religious environment in order to promote justice and peace.

7. Determined to seek justice and to apply the law to assist the marginalised

Determined to seeking justice through the law, empathising with the needs of the marginalised, and finding legal solutions to their problems.

INTRODUCTION

The University of Jaffna is a public university in Sri Lanka. Established in 1974 as the sixth campus of the University of Sri Lanka, it became an independent, autonomous university in 1979. The University of Jaffna has two campuses, the main campus in Thirunelvely in Jaffna and a second campus in Vavuniya. It also has facilities in Ariviyal Nagar near Kilinochchi, Kaithady and Maruthanarmadam near Chunnakam. It has ten faculties (Agriculture, Applied Science, Arts, Business Studies, Engineering, Graduate Studies, Management Studies & Commerce, Medicine, Science and Technology) and thirteen other academic units/centres. The University offers undergraduate and postgraduate courses that award various degrees.

The University, when it was established in 1974, had approval for the establishment of three faculties (Humanities, Law and Science) and one Department (Physical Education). However, the introduction of law as an academic discipline at the University took three decades to materialise and finally, in 2005, the LL.B degree programme commenced with a Department of Law set up under theaegis of the Faculty of Arts. The Faculty of Arts is the largest faculty in the University, with 17 departments and 31 disciplines belonging to the fields of Humanities, Social Sciences and provides institutional housing to the Faculty of Arts.

DEPARTMENT OF LAW

Since 2005 the Department of Law has offered a four-year programme of study, leading to theaward of a Bachelor of Laws Degree. The advisory committee appointed by the then-Vice Chancellor,Prof. S. Mohanadas, consisting of Mr. N. Selvakkumaran (Dean/Faculty of Law, University of Colombo), Mr. K.P.S Varatharajah (High Court Judge), Dr Deepika Udagama (Head/ Department ofLaw, University of Colombo), Mr. V.T.Thamilmaran (Senior Lecturer Faculty of Law, University ofColombo), Dr. H.J.F. Silva (Principal, Law College of Sri Lanka), Ms. Shantha Abimanasingam P.C (President, Bar Association of Jaffna), Mr. A. Gnanathasan (Deputy Solicitor General) and Prof. N. Gnanakumaran provided guidance and directions towards the establishment of the Department and the development of its curriculum. The curriculum was designed to include auxiliary course units such asBasic Science, Management and Entrepreneurial skills, Social Harmony and Communication Skills, Computer Literacy and English in order to produced holistic legal professionals. The first batch wasmade up of 22 students who came from various parts of the North and East of this Island.

In 2005 Prof. N. Gnanakumaran served as the first head of the Department of Law. Mr. M. Sutharsan (2005 - 2007) and Ms. S. Vigneswary (2005 - 2007) served as lecturers. On the 6th of July 2006 the Law Students' Association (now known as the Law Students' Society) was established. In the absence of permanent staff, lectures were conducted by judges as well as Attorneys-at-Law who practiced in Jaffna. Due to the armed conflict, academic activities were interrupted until 2006. The students were shifted to Colombo and followed their Degree programme at Colombo Tamil Sangamfrom 2007. The second and third batches, which were registered in 2006 and 2007 respectively, were combined and followed their degree programme together at Colombo. The students were supported,guided and taught by the staff attached to the Faculty of Law, University of Colombo. Mr. B. N. Thamboo (Attorney at Law) has served as Academic Coordinator for the Colombo Branch of the Department of Law since 2008.





Subsequently, the first, second and third-year academic programmes in Law were brought back to Jaffna, with the fourth year academic programme continuing to be held in Colombo. The University has decided to discontinue this arrangement and conduct the fourth year of study at the main campus itselffrom the second semester of the academic year of 2016/2017. In 2009 the first batch of the Departmentof Law launched a magazine called "Neetham". Subsequent batches have undertaken the responsibility publish this magazine annually.

In the year 2009, two temporary lecturers and one tutor, Mrs. Kosalai Mathan, Mr. Vignarajah Sanjendra and Mrs. Karthiga Senthuran respectively, were appointed, and the academic programme forth batch of 2008/2009 commenced with their assistance. Mr. Kumaravadivel Guruparan and Ms. Sharmini Vigneswaran joined as Temporary Lecturers in 2010 while Ms. Kathiga left. Ms. Sharmini's service came to an end with the expiry of her contract by the end of the academic year in 2010 and Mr.Sanjendra resigned from his post. Mrs. Kosalai Mathan was appointed to a permanent position in 2010.

Dr. Guruparan, having completed his Masters (BCL) at the University of Oxford, took up a permanent position in September 2011. He had served at the Department for ten years when he resigned from the post of Senior Lecturer in 2020. Mrs. Thushani Sayanthan was appointed as a permanent lecturer in 2012 whilst pursuing her postgraduate studies at the South Asia University (New Delhi), which she completed in 2013. Mrs. Dianarthy Suthakar was appointed as a temporary lecturer in 2012 and received a permanent appointment in 2013. She served the Department for three years until her resignation in October 2015. Miss. Vishaka Wijeyanayake was appointed to a permanent position in 2013; she thereafter resigned in 2014 to undertake a Masters Programme in the USA on a Fulbright scholarship. Mrs. Purathani Mathanaranjan, Mr. Sivanesan Pradinath and Mr. Sanjayan Rajasingham were appointed to permanent positions in 2015, 2016 and 2017 respectively. Mr. Sanjayan Rajasinghan resigned in 2018 to pursue Masters Programme in the USA as a Fulbright Scholar and is currently a doctoral candidate at the Yale Law School. Mrs. Purathani Mathanarajan is currently reading M.Phil at the University of Colombo.

Mr. Kogulan (Tutor) and Ms. Teshepa Rajah (Temporary Lecturer), Ms. S. Pakkiyanathan, Mrs. Deshani Thabrew Mrs. N. Vichvaneadhiran, Mr. Janakan Muthukumar, Mrs. Mathuri, Mr B. Soorya, Mrs. Nalina, and Mrs. Ajra Azar served in temporary capacities as lecturers.

Mrs. N. Vichvaneadhiran and Miss. S. Pakkiyanathan were appointed to permanent positions in 2018.

Miss. T. Kaneshan, Miss. S. Samaradiwakara and Mr. S. Pathujan are currently serving as temporary lecturers.

Currently, the Department of Law has eight academic cadres which are occupied by the following individuals in the order of their appointment:

- 1. Mrs. Kosalai Mathan
- 2. Mrs. Thushani Shayanthan
- 3. Mrs. Purathani Mathanarajan
- 4. Mr. Sivanesan Pradinath
- 5 Miss. Paakiyanathan Supasini
- 6. Mrs. Nirogini Vichvaneadhiran
- 7. Miss. Thulasi Kanesan
- 8. Miss. Sujatha Samaradiwarkara

9. Mr. Srinagaruban Pathujan

Eleven batches of law students have graduated from the University since its inception in 2005. The number of students admitted to the Department of Law has rapidly increased and at present there are about 100 students enrolled every year from all parts of the country. Moreover, the Department of Law constantly receives immense support from the staff attached to the Faculty of Law, University of Colombo in relation to lectures, examinations, etc.

The main library of the University of Jaffna is located on its main campus and has a collection of 2600 law books (from Class No.430 -439), including textbooks, journals etc.

ACADEMIC STAFF OF THE DEPARTMENT

HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT



Mrs. Thushani Shayanthan LL.B (Hons) (Jaffna) LL.M (SAU, New Delhi), Senior Lecturer Grade I Attorney-at- Law

Mrs. Thushani Shayanthan joined the permanent staff of the Department in 2012 and completed her Masters from South Asia University, New Delhi and from 2017 was promoted to Senior Lecturer Grade II. She previously taught on contract in the academic year 2011/2012. Her research interests are in Intellectual Property Law, Public International Law and the Law of the Sea. Mrs. Shayanthan serves on the Centre for Gender Equity and Equality and is regularly invited to sit on disciplinary inquiry panels by the Vice Chancellor.

Mrs. Thushani Shayanthan is a member of the Board of Student Discipline of University of Jaffna and Legal Expert of the University Business Linkage of the University of Jaffna. Mrs. Thushani Shayanthan was a former member of the Center for Gender Equity and Equality (CGEE) (served from December 2017 – January 2020). She also served as a Former Chairperson of the Grievance Committee / CGEE (2019) served as a member in *Ad hoc* Inquiry Committees for staff and students. She also served as the Deputy-Proctor of the University of Jaffna. Contributed to draft a Policy on the Protection of Intellectual Property at the university level, drafted By-Laws relating to Student Discipline, drafted By-Laws to investigate and inquire Sexual and Gender Based Violence and Policy Framework for Gender Equity and Equality for the University.

LECTURERS



Dr Kumaravadivel Guruparan LL.B (Hons) (Col) BCL (Oxon) Ph.D (UCL)

Research Fellow in International Law (Chatham House, the UK) Formerly Head and Senior Lecturer Grade II Attorney-at-Law

Kumaravadivel Guruparan joined the Department in 2010 as a Lecturer (on Contract) and was appointed in September 2011 as a permanent staff member. He was promoted in 2016 as a Senior Lecturer. He is the recipient of two major scholarships - the Chevening Scholarship (2011) and the Commonwealth Scholarship (2013). He was awarded the Winter Williams Scholarship and the Oxford Pro Bono Publico Internship Fund Award by the University of Oxford. He won the Faculty Prize for best performance in 'Socio Economic Rights and Substantive Equality' from the Faculty of Law, University of Oxford. He was awarded the 'Dean's Most Outstanding Student of the Year's Award' by the Faculty of Law, University of Colombo in 2010. In 2004 he won the CWW Kannangara Award for best performance in the A/Level exams from the President of Sri Lanka.

Dr. Guruparan served as Head Law from January 2017 - December 2019 and served as a Legal Consultant to the University between January - September 2018. He continues to provide input on an *adhoc* basis towards the regulation of the university's legal affairs. He is a member of the Faculty of Arts Curriculum Development Committee, Committee on Bifurcation and serves as one of the Activity Coordinators for the Faculty's Proposal Committee for the World Bank sponsored AHEAD project. He is also regularly invited to sit on disciplinary inquiry panels by the Vice Chancellor.

Dr. Guruparan is the founding Executive Director of Adayaalam Centre for Policy Research, a think tank based in Jaffna. He is a founder-member and Co-Spokesperson of the Tamil Civil Society Forum, which works towards recreating public spheres for dialogue on politics and public policy. He is also practicing attorney specialising in Administrative Law, Civil Appeals and Human Rights.



Mrs. Kosalai Mathan LL.B (Hons) (Col) M.Phil (Col), Senior Lecturer Grade I Attorney-at-Law

Mrs. Kosalai Mathan joined the Department in 2009 on contract basis and was appointed to the permanent staff in 2010. She completed her M.Phil. titled 'The Role of the Judiciary, Democratic Governance and Nation Building in Sri Lanka' under the supervision of Mr. N. Selvakkumaran, former Dean of the Faculty of Law, University of Colombo. Her research interests are in Constitutional Law, Administrative Law and Public Law in general. She has served as resource person for many governmental and non-governmental including the Constitutional Assembly of Sri Lanka, and still associates with various government and private organisations in the capacity of a resource person, consultant, facilitator, speaker, guest, panelist etc. She is a member of the Internal Quality Assurance Cell of the Faculty of Arts and served as the President of the Jaffna University Teachers Association.



Mrs. Purathani Mathanaranjan LL.B (Hons) (Jaffna) M.Phil (Reading) (Colombo) Lecturer (Probationary) Attorney-at-Law

Mrs. Purathanai Mathan joined the permanent staff in 2015 and is currently reading an MPhil on women's rights in *Thesawalamai* at the University of Colombo. She previously served as lecturer on contract basis for a year in 2013. Her research interests are in Family Law, the Law of Property, Labour Law and the broader area of Private Law.



Mr. Sivanesan Pradinath LL.B (Hons) (Jaffna) LL.M (Colombo) Lecturer (Probationary) Attorney-at-Law

Mr. Pradinath joined the Department in 2016 and specialises in commercial law subjects with a special interest in International Trade Law and Company Law. Previously, he taught on contract basis in the year 2015. He completed his LL.M at the University of Colombo in the year of 2018. He submitted an extended essay in fulfillment of the requirement of the Degree of Master of Laws entitled "Corporate Abuses under the Shield of Corporate Veil: A Critical Study of the Principle of Limited Liability and Veil of Incorporation" under the supervision of Dr. K. Kanag-Isvaran, President's Counsel. He serves occasionally as staff advisor to our debating and mooting team and serves as a representative of probationary lecturers at the Faculty Board and now serves as an executive member of Jaffna University Teachers Association.



Miss. Supasini Pakkiyanathan LL.B (Hons) (Jaffna), Lecturer (Probationary) Attorney-at-Law

Ms. Pakkiyanathan joined the Department in a permanent capacity in 2018. She taught on contract basis in 2016. Her research interests are in Information Technology Law and Public Law. She is responsible for the moot court training programmes of the Department and servers as the coach of the moot teams representing University of Jaffna. Ms. Pakkiyanathan has been serving as the Department's Student Counsellor since February 2020.



Mrs. Nirogini Vichvaneadhiran LL.B (Hons) (Jaffna), Lecturer (Probationary) LL.M (Reading) (SAU, New Delhi) Attorney-at-Law

Mrs. Nirogini Vichvaneadhiran joined the Department in 2018. She worked as a Temporary Lecturer in 2017. Her research interests are in Contract Law and Private Law in general, but also includes the Law of Evidence and Procedure and Public International Law. Mrs. Vichvaneadhiran serves as the staff advisor to our debating team. She is currently on study leave reading for her LL.M at the South Asian University.

Temporary Assistant Lecturers



Miss. Thulasi Kanesan LL.B (Hons) (Jaffna) Temporary Assistant Lecturer-in-Law



Miss. Hithihamilage Sujatha Samaradiwakara

LL.B (Hons) (Jaffna) Temporary Assistant Lecturer-in-Law



Mr. Srinagaruban Pathujan LL.B (Jaffna) Temporary Assistant Lecturer-in-Law

NON- ACADEMIC STAFF



Mrs. Vijayatharsini Pakeerathan

B.A. (General)

Management Assistant



Mr. T. Premachandran Office Assistant Grade I

FORMER HEADS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF LAW

1.	Prof. N. Gnanakumaran	- 2005 - 2007
2.	Prof. V.P. Sivanathan	- 2008 - 2010
3.	Prof. M. Sinnathamby	- 2010 - 2011
4.	Dr. T. Kalamany	- 2011 - 2013
5.	Prof (Mrs). S. Ramesh	- 2014 - 2016
6.	Dr. K. Guruparan	- 2017 - 2019

ZERO TOLERANCE TO RAGGING AND OTHER FORMS OF VIOLENCE

The Department subscribes to a zero-tolerance approach to ragging and other forms of violence. Any students proven to have been involved in ragging or other forms of violence will face serious legal consequences including the possibility of student registration with the university being canceled. We both abhor verbal, psychological forms of ragging and not just physical forms of ragging. Ragging subscribes to a notion of false hierarchy which we are committed to dismantle. We at the Department of Law strongly believe that ragging is fundamentally antithetical to those values that a university must inculcate among students.

The Department subscribes to a zero-tolerance approach to ragging and other forms of violence. Any students proven to have been involved in ragging or other forms of violence will face serious legal consequences including the possibility of student registration with the university being canceled. We both abhor verbal, psychological forms of ragging and not just physical forms of ragging. Ragging subscribes to a notion of false hierarchy which we are committed to dismantle. We at the Department of Law strongly believe that ragging is fundamentally antithetical to those values that a university must inculcate among students.

- I. The University By-Law on Student Discipline is available here: <u>http://www.jfn.ac.lk/wp-content/uploads/By-Law-on-Student-Discipline.pdf</u>
- II. The University Grants Commission's Common Guidelines on Student Discipline are available here: http://www.jfn.ac.lk/wp-con tent/uploads/common-guidelines-on-studentdiscipline_ugc_commission-circular-no-946.pdf
- III. The UGC Online Ragging Complaint Portal is available here: <u>http://eugc.ac.lk/rag/</u>
- IV. Information regarding the University's Centre for Gender Equity and Equality is available here: http://www.unit.jfn.ac.lk/cgee/

AWARDS

- 1. V. N. Navaratnam Memorial Prize for the Best Performance in Law for the student with the highest GPA and holding a Second Class Upper Division or First Class.
- 2. Faculty Prize for Best Performance in Law (awarded by the Board of the Faculty of Arts) awarded to the best performance in each of the four examinations in Law. One Prize each for the First Year, Second Year, Third Year and Final Year)

LIBRARY

Your library is the laboratory. In all universities, a law degree calls for hard work. You must become familiar with a great deal of material across a wide range of legal topics -which means reading law reports, books as well as online materials. A particular emphasis is placed on the first-hand study of legal sources - the reading of statutes and cases, sometimes very long statutes and cases, in their original reported form. This means a lot of work in the library. The Viththiyananthan Library has a decent collection of law books and the Department works with the Library to keep it updated.

THE STUDENT COMPUTER UNIT

The Computer Unit of the University has a number of labs with access to the internet for the use of students. The Computer Unit is located near the main library of the university. There is also an additional computer unit on the 4th floor of the New Arts Block that is accessible to law students.

THE IMPORTANCE OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE

The curriculum for the Bachelor of Laws degree is designed to be taught in the English medium. The degree programme includes English as a subject for a period of 3 years taught by staff attached to English Language Teaching Centre (ELTC). Students are expected to take extra efforts to enhance their competence in English to be able to successfully pursue the degree course in the English medium.

SPORTS-SCIENCE UNIT

The University of Jaffna has a Sports Science Unit which provides training to students in both indoor and outdoor games. University students have won many athletic awards and event awards at the regional and national level.

STUDENT WELFARE AND DISCIPLINE

The office of the Students' Welfare Branch is situated in Students' Complex of the University. It guides and directs the students towards obtaining the Mahapola Bursary. The Assistant Registrar of the Welfare Branch also recommends those needy students for assistance from the Vice Chancellor's Fund.

COUNSELLING AND CAREER GUIDANCE

The University provides free counseling services to all undergraduates who need help and counselling. The Student Counselors function with the direction and under the guidance of the Senior Student Counselor and provide counseling services for the students over matters involving academic and personal affairs.

STUDENTS' WELLBEING

In addition to the academic related counselling, the University also provides the students with counselling to maintain their psychological wellbeing. The newly installed Students' Wellbeing Centre provides the students with consultations to maintain their psychological wellbeing, if such consultations are needed and monitors the psychological wellbeing of those whose mental health needs monitoring. The students who feels depressed or otherwise mentally taxed may approach the Wellbeing Centre on their own. In exceptional circumstances the students' counsellor or the head of the department may refer a student for counselling provided that such counselling is vital to that students' wellbeing.

GENDER EQUITY AND EQUALITY

Being mindful of the gender-based violence often takes place in higher educational institutions, the University of Jaffna also provides preventive and punitive mechanism for gender based violence. Any student who is being subjected to unwanted intrusion of privacy or sexual harassments or any other gender based violence, be it by an academic staff, non-academic staff or fellow students, may contact the Gender Cell attached to the University to bring such violence or intrusion to their attention..

THE ALUMNI COMMITTEE

The Committee was established in 2014. The objectives of the Committee are the promotion of fellowship among the alumni of the Department of Law; the promotion of the welfare of the alumni, staff and students; the promotion of matters of interest and research of relevance to the students, staff, alumni of the Department of Law and the community; the promotion of the educational, professional and employment interests of the alumni and of the students of the Department of Law; the assistance of the Department of Law in the development of its curricula and teaching methodologies; the facilitation and fostering of contact between the students and alumni of the Department of Law for the purpose of career guidance and other mutually beneficial activities.

LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION

The Law Students Association has been active since 2006. The Association promotes organisational spirit among the students and has in the past organized literary and debate competitions among law undergraduates and school students within the Northern Province on an annual basis. It also publishes an annual students' journal called 'Neetham'. It organizes an annual sporting and literary activities week called 'LUDUS'. Additionally, the Association also provides mooting and debating practices to students and organise seminars and webinars on various legal topics. The current executive committee is headed by Miss. K. Parameswaran (President) and Mr. Surendran (Secretary).

MOOTING AND DEBATING

A moot court competition simulates a court hearing, in which participants analyse a problem, research the relevant law, prepare written submissions, and present oral argument. Moot problems are typically set in areas of law that are unsettled or that have been subject to recent developments.

The procedure imitates that followed in real courts: the judge enters, the mooters and the judge bow to each other, the clerk announces the matter, the mooters give their appearances and are then called on in turn to present their submissions, the judge asks questions of the mooters, the court adjourns, and the judge then returns to deliver a brief judgment and some feedback.

Mooting is not the same as public speaking or debating, although it shares some common elements with these activities. It is a specialised application of the art of persuasive advocacy.

At the Department of Law we believe that mooting is an essential part of the academic study of the law as an undergraduate programme. A common misconception is that studying law is mainly a matter of memorizing data. It is true that there is a lot to remember but lawyers exist to use the law, not just to know it, and the main way that lawyers use the law is by making legal arguments. A central aspect of legal education is learning to make a proper legal argument. This is a creative activity and calls for originality and inspiration as well as information and accuracy. Through a combination of teaching, learning in the classroom and mooting we hope to create the right environment for our law students to explore the art and science of making a good legal argument.

We use mooting as part of in-course assessments. We also prepare students for various mooting competitions.

Furthermore, the Department encourages students to take part in debating activities. It recommends the parliamentary style of debating as the format of debating to engage in public policy debates. The Department will, as far as possible, support student participation in national and international debating and mooting competitions.

OUR APPROACH TO THE STUDY OF LAW

Law manages to affect everything, and is closely interconnected with other disciplines, particularly the social sciences. From international relations in international law, to medicine in tort law, to sociology in family law, to economics in contract law, the law interacts with a wide variety of disciplines. We encourage our students to take a multi-disciplinary approach to the study of law while at the same time firmly grounding themselves in the foundations of that which makes law a distinct discipline. We aspire to teach, study and research the law both as an academic discipline of its own standing while also exploring its multi-disciplinary contours. We are concerned equally with producing technically sound lawyers as well as kindling the spirit of constantly asking the question of what the law ought to be. In other words our philosophy of teaching places equal importance on the question of 'what is the law?' as well as on 'what ought to be the law?'. This we believe is what distinguishes an academic study of the law from a professional study of the law.

WHOM TO CONTACT?

In case of any questions/ assistance with regard to your academic work or student welfare related needs your first point of contact is the Head of the Department. Please come see our Management Assistant who will be happy to schedule an appointment with the Head.

With regard to student welfare, ragging et al you may also contact the department's student counsellors. Their contact information is available from the Department.

Contact Details:

Department of Law: 0212 229 601 Dean/Arts: 0212 223 091 Proctor: Marshall: 077 358 6590 A/R Welfare: 0212 2229 668 Well-being centre: 0212 214 067 Career Guidance Unit: 0212214908

Course Outline

Detailed course outlines are available on the Department's website:

https://sites.google.com/univ.jfn.ac.lk/law/home

Cultural Event of the Law Students' Association - "ENAMOUR 2019"



Participants of the 15th Henry Dunant Memorial Moot Court Competition, National Rounds (Runners-Up) and South Asian Regional Round – Kathmandu, Nepal 2019



H.V. Perera QC Memorial Moot Court Competition (a.k.a. Victor's Moot) - 2019



Henry Dunant Memorial Moot Court Competition - Vernacular 2019 (Champions - Tamil)





Law Goes Green Tri-Lingual Debate Competition - 2019



Hulftsdorp Debates (Sri Lanka Law College) - 2019



United States Agency for International Development Workshop - 2019





Sporting Event of the Law Students' Association - 'LUDUS 2019'

Launch of Annual Journal of the Law Students Association and Prize Giving (Chief Guest: His Lordship Justice S. Thurairajah of the Supreme Court)



KEY POINTS FROM THE BY-LAWS

Please read the bylaws in their entirety and ask us any questions you may have.

Here are some key points from the by-laws

- 1. While we appreciate that university education is adult education and that attendance in principle should not be compulsory (yes this is not a school) university policy requires that you satisfy 80% attendance. The Department of Law adheres to this policy.
- 2. If you cannot sit for a scheduled exam during the first sitting do remember that when you sit for it again you will be awarded a grade point value equivalent to a B. (even if you get an A+ result). However if you cannot sit for an exam due to some extraneous reason/s then, subject to the approval of the senate, we will treat your next sitting as the first sitting. But you need to provide evidence for the extraneous reasons canvassed. For example a valid medical certificate should be submitted within 14 days.
- You must pass at least half your courses in an academic year (15 credits out of 30). If not you will not be allowed to progress to the next academic year. You will have to re-sit for your exams, clear your arrears and then you will be allowed to proceed.
- 4. 45 marks is the pass mark (C- grade). But remember that too many C- grades will not help you get through the degree.
- 5. When you repeat the exams for a course you will NOT be permitted to resubmit your in-course assessment marks. If you want to re-sit for your in course assessments you have to apply for permission to re-do the course which means you have to study the course, attend lectures all over again as part of which you can re-do your in course assessments.

UNIVERSITY OF JAFFNA, SRI LANKA FACULTY OF ARTS

THE BACHELOR OF LAWS DEGREE PROGRAMME BASED ON CREDIT VALUED SEMESTER SYSTEM

By LAWS

(By-Laws made by the Council of the University of Jaffna under Section 135 of the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 as subsequently amended)

1. These By-Laws may be cited as the Bachelor of Laws By-Laws No. 2 of 2008.

Part I -General

- 2. Subject to these By-Laws, a student may be awarded the Degree of Bachelor of Laws if s/he
 - a. has been admitted to the University of Jaffna (hereinafter referred to the University) as a student under section 15 (vii) of the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 or any other relevant law that replaces it;
 - b. has been a duly registered student of the University for the period prescribed for the programme of study leading to the Bachelor of Laws and her/his registration continues to be in force;
 - c. has completed to the satisfaction of the Vice Chancellor the relevant courses of study leading to the Degree of Bachelor of Laws prescribed by these By Laws, and any other relevant Rules and Regulations made by the University;
 - d. has satisfied all the course requirements leading to the Bachelor of Laws as set out in Part II below;
 - e. has paid such fees as may have been prescribed by the University and any other dues payable by her/him to the University; and
 - f. has fulfilled all other conditions and requirements as may have been prescribed by these By-Laws and any other Rules and Regulations of the University.
- 3. It shall be the duty and responsibility of the student who is admitted to the University to keep her/his registration valid by paying the prescribed fees in

time until she/he completes the Programme.

- 4. The minimum period for which a person shall be a registered student of the Bachelor of Laws Degree Programme shall be four years and any person admitted to the Programme shall complete it before the end of seven years from the date of first registration.
- 5. The registration shall be, unless otherwise decided by the Senate on the recommendation of the Faculty Board, valid for one academic year at a time and shall be renewed annually subject to the provisions of these By-Laws.

Part II: The Programme

6.

- a. The Programme of Study leading to the Degree of Bachelor of Laws (hereinafter referred to as the Degree Programme) shall be of four academic years' duration. The four academic years shall be known as the
 - i. Bachelor of Laws Year I Programme
 - ii. Bachelor of Laws Year II Programme
 - iii. Bachelor of Laws Year III Programme
 - iv. Bachelor of Laws Year IV Programme
- b. A student shall take course units aggregating to 30 credits in each year of the Degree Programme.
- c. A Student should earn a total of 120 Credits in all four years of the Degree Programme.
- d. A student may, with the approval of the Head of the Department of Law, take two more Elective Course Units in addition to the stipulated minimum number of Course Units in the third / fourth year. The performance at these Course Units will not be taken into consideration in the computation of the Grade Point Average (GPA).
- 7. Each academic year of the Degree Programme shall consist of two Semesters with lectures, discussion, tutorials, legal clinics etc being conducted for Course Units offered for that year. In- Course Assessments and End-of-Course Examinations shall be conducted for each Course Unit during the course of the Semester and at the end of the Semester respectively."

- 8. The Degree Programme shall consist of Core Course Units, Elective Course Units and Auxiliary Course Units as are prescribed in the relevant Regulations made by the University. Subject Areas, Titles & Codes of Course Units, Type of Course Units and the number of hours of instruction per Course Unit, for each year, shall be those prescribed in those Regulations. The Senate, on the recommendation of the Faculty Board, shall have authority to change or amend the subject areas, titles & numbers of course units, type of course units and the number of instruction for course units and such amendments and changes shall come into effect after due notice is given to the students.
- 9. Each Course has a Course Code. A Five Letter Prefix, followed by a three digit number, followed by a letter and a single digit is used to identify the course units.
 - i. The first two letters 'AL' reflects the Department of Law in the Faculty of Arts.
 - ii. The third and fourth letters indicate the Letter Code of the subject
 - iii. The fifth letter indicate whether the Course is Auxiliary (A) or Core (C) or Elective (E).
 - iv. The first digit of the five digit number indicates the Year (1, 2, 3 or 4) in which the course is taught.
 - v. The second digit of the five digit number indicates the semester.
 - vi. The third and fourth digit of the five digit number indicates the identification number assigned to that particular course.
 - vii. The last digit of the five digit number indicates the credit value of the course unit.

Eg : The Course Code ALCLC 11034 indicate that it is the Core Course Unit "CL" of credit value four taught in the First Year First Semester

- 10. The syllabuses of each Course Unit of the Degree Programme shall also be prescribed by Regulations recommended by the Faculty Board and approved by the Senate. The Senate shall have authority, on the recommendation of the Faculty Board, to amend or change the syllabuses from time to time.
- 11. Instruction in each Course Unit at each year of the Degree Programme shall take the form of lectures, tutorials, discussions, workshops, seminars, legal clinics, assignments, research, presentation of papers, demonstration, self-study exercises and/or any other forms approved by the Faculty Board. The Faculty Board shall have authority to decide the courses to be taught and the method(s) of imparting instruction in each Semester.

- 12. It shall be the responsibility and duty of the students to attend and participate at not less than that percentage, as decided by the Head of the Department and approved by the Faculty Board, of all the different forms of instructions employed for a given course.
- 13. No student shall keep away from attending the different forms of instructions for more than three consecutive days without informing and obtaining the written approval of the Head of the Department.
- 14. A student who passes in course units aggregating to not less than fifteen credits may proceed to the next year and repeat the course units in which she/he had failed while sitting for the course units of the year in which she/he is in. However no student will be eligible to proceed to the next year when she/he has failed in course units whose credit values aggregate to more than fifteen credits.

Part III: Evaluation

- 15. The performance of a student shall be evaluated through a system of incourse assessment such as Mid-Semester Examination as well as an end-ofcourse assessment such as Semester Examination in respect of each Course Unit.
- 16. The in-course assessment shall be based on the performance of the students at Take-Home Assignments, Term Papers, Class Room Tests, Seminars, Demonstrations, Performances, Recitals, Workshops, Tutorials, Legal Clinics, Projects, Paper-Presentations, Mid-Semester Examination and/or any other form of exercise decided by the Faculty Board.
- 17. A Semester Examination shall be conducted in respect of all the course units at the end of the Semester after the completion of the teaching allocated for that Semester. The Semester Examinations of the Degree Programmes are:
 - i. Bachelor of Laws Examination Year I , (Calendar year) Semester I
 - ii. Bachelor of Laws Examination Year I , (Calendar year) Semester II
 - iii. Bachelor of Laws Examination Year II , (Calendar year) Semester I
 - iv. Bachelor of Laws Examination Year II, (Calendar year) Semester II
 - v. Bachelor of Laws Examination Year III, (Calendar year) Semester I
 - vi. Bachelor of Laws Examination Year III , (Calendar year) Semester II

- vii. Bachelor of Laws Examination Year IV, (Calendar year) Semester I
- viii. Bachelor of Laws Examination Year IV, (Calendar year) Semester II.
- 18. All rules relating to the Examination Procedure, Offences and Punishment made and followed by the University of Jaffna shall apply to, or in relation to, the examinations of the Degree Programme to the extent they are not inconsistent with these By-laws.
- 19. Without prejudice to the generality of the Examination Procedure, Offences and Punishment Rules, the rules relating to the Class Room Tests, Take-Home Assignments, Term Papers, Seminars, Paper-Presentations, Mid-Semester Examination and other forms of exercise, shall be formulated and implemented by the Faculty Board and any question relating to formulation and implementation shall be decided by the Faculty Board.
- 20. Rules relating to the Class Room Test, Take-Home Assignments, Term Papers, Seminars, Paper- Presentations, Mid-Semester Examination and other forms of exercise shall be announced, from time to time, by the Head of the Department in consultation with the teacher/s and such rules shall not be changed or revoked unless otherwise decided by the Faculty Board.
- 21. A student shall not be permitted to take a Semester Examination unless the Head of the Department has certified that s/he has satisfied the requirements of the relevant Course Units, including regular attendance at classes and submission of assignments at the appropriate time, as prescribed by the Senate on the recommendation of the Faculty Board.
- 22. The Semester Examinations prescribed by these By-Laws shall be conducted by Boards of Examiners appointed by the Senate on the recommendation of the Faculty Board.
- 23. The In-Course Assessment of a course unit shall be carried out by individual teacher/s of the course unit. Provided that when the In-Course Assessment takes the form of seminars, paper- presentations or any other practical demonstration or performance, a panel of teachers of the Department shall, as far as possible, assess the performance.
- 24. A candidate shall present herself/himself for each Semester Examination of Course Units leading to the Degree on the first occasion on which the examination is held after the completion of the relevant Course Units taken by that candidate, provided that it shall be within the power of the Senate to permit her/him to sit on a subsequent occasion if she/he has been prevented from sitting the examination due to illness or any other reasonable cause.
- 25. A candidate who fails to complete any of the Course Units in the first attempt shall be eligible to repeat that/those Course Unit/Units within a maximum of

two other subsequent occasions unless the approval of the Senate is obtained to do otherwise.

- 26. The weightage for the End-Semester Examination and In-Course Assessment for a Course Unit shall be 60% and 40% respectively for the final mark assigned to a Course Unit. There shall be at least two In-Course Assessments for each Course Unit."
- 27. All In-Course assessments of any course unit (Assignments, Tutorials, Project Report, Oral presentations, practical exams, continuous assessments, in course assessment examinations etc.) shall be carried out during the semester in which the course unit is taught.
- 28. In Course assessments for any course unit shall be carried out at the dates and time determined by the department offering that course unit. The Head of the department is responsible for the marks awarded to all components of the in course assessment of course units offered by the respective department. In case of repeat candidates or absentee, marks obtained for in course assessment shall be carried forward for the next end semester examination.

The Semester Examination

- 29. Unless the Senate otherwise decides, on the recommendation of the Faculty Board, there shall be conducted one Semester Examination for each Semester of the Degree Programme.
- 30. The number of question papers and the title of those papers for each Course Unit of the Semester Examination of the Programme shall be those set out in the relevant Regulation, and the Senate shall have power, on the recommendation of the Faculty Board, to amend, vary, increase or decrease them.
- 31. Each student shall work on a Research Project and submit a Project Report in Year IV of the Degree Programme. The credit value of the Project is five.
- 32. Each registered student shall make an application in the form provided by the Examination Unit for entry to the relevant Semester Examination.
- 33. No application for a Semester Examination made by any student shall be entertained by the Examination Branch / Office of the Dean/Arts unless the Head of the Department of Law has certified that the student has satisfied the minimum required percentage of attendance for each course unit taught in that Semester.
- 34. A student shall not take any of the Semester Examination on more than three occasions and in computing the total number of occasions there shall be taken

into account any occasion on which she/he is deemed to have taken the Semester Examination in terms of these By-laws.

35. A student, who fails a Semester Examination, does not take a Semester Examination or is deemed to have taken a Semester Examination shall not be allowed to follow the course instruction except where the Senate for some specified reason gives her/him permission to do so.

Computation of Results

- 36. For the final evaluation of the performance of a student in a course unit in any Semester of the Degree Programme, that percentage of the marks obtained by her/him at the In Course Assessment as well as that percentage of the marks obtained by her/him at the Semester Examination, as decided by the Senate on the recommendation of the Faculty Board, shall be taken into account.
- 37. Each Course Unit at every Examination of the Degree Programme shall carry a maximum of 100 marks and be assessed or graded with a mark and a grade according to the following scale:

Marks	Grade	Grade Point
80% and above	А	4.00
Between 75% and 79%	A-	3.75
Between 70% and 74%	B+	3.35
Between 65% and 69%	В	3.00
Between 60% and 64%	B-	2.70
Between 55% and 59%	C+	2.30
Between 50% and 54%	С	2.00
Between 45% and 49%	C-	1.70
Between 40% and 44%	D+	1.30
Between 35% and 39%	D	1.00
Between 30% and 34%	D-	0.75
Between 0% and 29%	F	0.00

38.

1. A candidate is deemed to have failed a Course Unit if she/he has obtained a Grade lower than C- for the Unit. Candidates must repeat

all Course Units so failed in order to obtain grades not lower than C-

- 2. A student is deemed to have passed a course unit in English if she/he obtains a grade of C or above in that course unit.
- 3. The maximum grade that could be awarded to repeat candidate is B.
- 39. A student who absents herself/himself from the Examination in a Course Unit without a valid excuse acceptable to the Senate, on the recommendation of the Faculty Board, shall be deemed to have failed in the course unit and, for the purpose of computation of results, she/he shall be deemed to have received zero marks for the course unit.
- 40. During the study period, a student accumulates grade points from the various courses offered. From the grade points accumulated, a Grade Point Average (GPA) may be calculated using the formula.

$$GPA = \frac{\sum_{n \in n}}{\frac{\sum_{n \in n}}{n}}$$

Where $[c_n\,]$ and $[g_n\,]$ are the credit value and the grade point value obtained respectively for the $[n_m\,]$ course unit.

Any calculated GPA shall be rounded to the second decimal place.

41. A candidate shall be deemed to have qualified for the Bachelor of Laws degree, if she/he passes in all the course units of four years obtaining not lower than C- grade, except in only one course unit with not lower than D grade and obtains Grade Point Average (GPA) not less than 2.00.

Award of Honours

- 42. A candidate who has satisfied the requirements of the Degree Programme in Law may be awarded First Class Honours, Second Class (Upper Division) Honours, Second Class (Lower Division) Honours, or a Pass as the case may be, on the results of all the Course Units of all four years offered by the candidate under the Programme.
- 43. A candidate shall have scored an overall Grade Point Average of 3.70 or above to obtain First Class Honours. A candidate shall have scored an overall Grade Point Average which is between 3.3 and 3.69 to obtain Second Class (Upper Division) Honours. A candidate shall have secured an overall Grade Point Average between 3.00 and 3.29 to obtain a Second Class (Lower Division) Honours. The minimum Grade Point Average for an ordinary pass will be 2.00.

Cut-off points of the Grade Point Average

1st Class = GPA≥3.70 2nd Upper= 3.3≤ GPA≤3.69 2nd Lower= 3.0≤GPA≤3.29 Ordinary pass=2.00≤GPA≤2.99

- 44. When a "fail" course unit is successfully completed at a subsequent attempt by a candidate, that course unit will be identified in the transcript by a special symbol "RC". The actual grade obtained by the student for the repeat course will be shown in the transcript. However, when computing the GPA, the maximum grade point value assigned to that course unit will be 3.00.
- 45. A candidate shall be eligible for the award of Honours only if s/he passes all the required Course Units of all Semester Examinations within four years and has scored the required Grade Point Average.

Part III: Interpretation

46. In these By- Laws unless the context otherwise requires :

"Council" means the Council of the University of Jaffna constituted by the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978

"Senate" means the Senate of the University of Jaffna constituted by the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978

"Faculty" means the Faculty of Arts of the University of Jaffna as constituted by the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978.

- 47. The Vice-Chancellor shall have authority, in consultation with the Dean of the Faculty of Arts and the Head of the Department of Law to take such action or give such direction not inconsistent with the principles underlying the provisions of these By-Laws, as appears to him/her to be necessary or expedient for the purpose of removing any difficulties that may arise in the interpretation of these provisions or for which there is no provision in these By-laws or in the case of students who have been following the Degree Programme under the existing arrangements approved by the Senate and the Council.
- 48. Any question regarding the interpretation of these By Laws shall be referred to the Council whose decision thereon shall be final.

UNIVERSITY OF JAFFNA, SRI LANKA FACULTY OF ARTS

THE BACHELOR OF LAWS DEGREE PROGRAMME BASED ON CREDIT VALUED SEMESTER SYSTEM

REGULATIONS

(Regulations made by Senate of the University of Jaffna under Section 136 of the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 as amended)

Part I: General

- 1. These Regulations may be cited as the Bachelor of Laws Degree Regulations No.2 of 2008 made by the Senate.
- 2. In these Regulations, "prescribed" means prescribed by the Senate on the recommendation of the Faculty Board of the Faculty of Arts of the University of Jaffna.

Part II: Subject Areas, Course Units, Syllabuses, Number of Course Units

3. The Course Codes, Course Titles and the credit values of each of the courses offered in each of Year I, Year II, Year III, Year IV of the LL.B Degree Programme are as follows:

Bachelor of Laws Year I Semester I

Course Code	Course Title	Credit
		Value
ALEGA11010	English – I(a)	00
ALCLA 11022	Computer Literacy	02
ALSCA 11032	Introduction to Social Harmony and	02
	Communication Skills	
ALLMC 11014	Legal method	04
ALLSC 11024	Introduction of Legal system	04
ALCLC 11034	Fundamentals of constitutional Law	04
		16

Bachelor of Laws Year I Semester II

Course Code	Course Title	Credit Value
ALEGA 12010	English – I (b)	00
ALEMA 12021	Management & Entrepreneurial skills	01
ALBSA 12031	Basic Science	01
ALCRC 12016	Criminal Law	06
ALCLC 12024	Theory and Practice of Constitutional	04
	Law	
ALSLC 12032	Sociology of Law	02
		14

Bachelor of Laws Year II Semester I

Course Code	Course Title	Credit Value
ALEGA 21010	English II (a)	00
ALLCC 21014	Law of Contract	04
ALLSC 21022	Law of succession	02
ALCLC 21034	Comparative Constitutional Law	04
ALLEC 21044	Law of Equity & Trusts	04
		14

Bachelor of Laws Year II Semester II

Course Code	Course Title	Credit Value
ALEGA 22010	English II (b)	00
ALLPC 22014	Law of Property	04
ALPLC 22024	Public International Law	04
ALLDC 22034	Law of Delict	04
ALLEC 22044	Law of Evidence and Criminal Procedure	04
		16

Bachelor of Laws Year III Semester I

Course Code	Course Title	Credit Value
ALEGA 31010	English III	00
ALALC 31014	Administrative Law	04
ALFLC 31025	Family Law	05
ALBLE 31014	Business Law	04
		13

Bachelor of Laws Year III Semester II

Course Code	Course Title	Credit
		Value
ALHLC 32014	Human Rights Law	04
ALISC 32025	Interpretation of Statutes	05
ALHLE 32024	International Humanitarian Law	04
ALIPE 32064	Intellectual Property Law	04
		17

Bachelor of Laws Year IV Programme

Course Code	Course Title	Credit Value
ALJUC 41016	Jurisprudence	06
ALELC 41024	Environmental Law	04
ALLLE 41014	Labour Law	04
ALITE 41024	IT Law	04
ALRMC 41033	Research Methodology	03
ALCLE 42024	Company Law	04
ALRPC 42015	Research Project	05
	L	30

<u>Note</u>: During the third and fourth years, a few of the following Elective Course Units may be offered depending on the availability of resources. The syllabus for these Elective Courses will be submitted for the recommendation of the Faculty Board and the approval of the Senate and made known to the students in advance if it is feasible to offer these courses.

Bachelor of Laws Year III Programme

Course Code	Course Title	Credit Value
ALILE 31024	Insurance Law	04
ALTLE 31034	Tax Law	04
ALHLE 32024	International Humanitarian Law	04
ALITE 32034	International Trade Law	04
ALADE 32044	Alternative Dispute Resolution	04
ALLME 32054	Law and Medicine	04

Bachelor of Laws Year IV Programme

Course Code	Course Title	Credit Value
ALILE 42014	International Investment	04
ALITE 42044	International Institutions	04
ALALE 42054	Aviation Law	04
ALLSE 42064	Law of the Sea	04
ALALE 42074	Admiralty Law	04

- 4. The Faculty Board shall decide on the course units that will be offered in a given Semester taking into consideration the availability of resources and demands for course units.
- 5. The Syllabuses of the Course Units are set out in the Schedule to this Regulation.
- 6. Except where otherwise decided by the Faculty Board, the Semester Examination for each course unit shall consist of one question paper of two or three hours' duration.
- 7. If any candidate sits for a course unit which consists of a practical component, the particular candidate shall complete both the components within the same semester. In the event of any candidate failing to complete one component and produces a medical certificate, such candidate shall have to repeat both components at the subsequent occasion when the examination is held.
- 8. The Course Codes, Course Titles and Credit Values and the Type (Core / Elective / Auxiliary) of any of the course units listed in the first two columns of the following table and taught and examined for the students who commenced their studies in the academic years 2005/2006 and 2006/2007 as per the Regulations of the By-Laws No.1 of 2006 are hereby deemed to have equivalent to the corresponding Course Codes, Course Titles and Credit Values and the Type (Core / Elective / Auxiliary) of course units listed in the last two columns.
- 9. The Vice-Chancellor shall have authority, in consultation with the Dean of the Faculty of Arts to take such action or give such direction not inconsistent with the principles underlying the provisions of these Regulations or the Bachelor of Laws By-Laws No. 2 of 2008, as appears to him/her to be necessary or expedient for the purpose of removing any difficulties that may arise in the interpretation of these provisions or for which there is no provision in these Regulations or By-laws or in the case of students who had followed or have been following the Degree Programme under the existing arrangements approved by the Senate and the Council.
- 10. Any question regarding the interpretation of these Regulations shall be referred to the Senate whose decision thereon shall be final.

Course units taught and examined as per the Regulations of the By-Laws No.1 of 2006		Equivalent course codes, course titles and credit values as per the Regulations of the By- Laws No.2 of 2008	
ALEGA10010	English Language Skills for Communication	ALENG101A0	English - I
ALEGA11010	English for Legal Studies	ALENG102A0	English - II
ALCLA10032	Computer Literacy	ALCOM103A2	Computer Literacy
ALSHA10022	Introduction to Social Harmony and Communication skills	ALSHC104A2	Introduction to Social Harmony and Communication skills
ALMEA11021	Management & Entrepreneurial skills	ALMES105A1	Management & Entrepreneurial skills
ALBSA12011	Basic Science	ALBSC106A1	Basic Science
ALLBC10014	Legal Method	ALLAW101C4	Legal Method
ALLBC11014	Introduction of Legal System	ALLAW103C4	Introduction of Legal System
ALLBC11023	Fundamentals of Constitutional Law	ALLAW104C4	Fundamentals of Constitutional Law
ALLBC11034	Criminal Law	ALLAW105C6	Criminal Law
ALLBC12023	Theory & Practice of Constitutional Law	ALLAW106C4	Theory & Practice of Constitutional Law
ALLBC12032	Sociology of Law	ALLAW107C2	Sociology of Law
ALEGA12010	English for Legal Studies	ALENG201A0	English - III
ALEGA21010	English for Legal Studies	ALLAW202A0	English - IV
ALLBC21014	Law of Contract	ALLAW201C4	Law of Contract
ALLBC21024	Law of Property	ALLAW202C4	Law of Property
ALLBE21033	Public International Law	ALLAW203C4	Public International Law
ALLBE21012	Law of Succession	ALLAW204C2	Law of Succession
ALLBC12013	Interpretation of Statutes	ALLAW304C5	Interpretation of Statutes
ALLBC12034	Family Law	ALLAW303C5	Family Law